
AGENDA – Regular Meeting of Council

Wednesday, April 13 , 2022

1:00 PM

Magnetawan Community Centre

Page # OPENING BUSINESS

1.1          Call to Order

1.2          Adoption of the Agenda 

1.3          Disclosure  of  Pecuniary  Interest

3 1.4          Adoption  of  Previous Minutes

QUARTERLY STAFF REPORTS

12 2.1 Report from By-law Enforcement Officer Caitlin Deevey, Mileage

19 2.2 Report from By-law Enforcement Officer Caitlin Deevey, 2022 First Quarter Report 

22 2.3 Report from Fire Chief Joe Readman, 2022 First Quarter Report 

24 2.4 Report from Chief Building Official Tyler Irwin, 2022 First Quarter Report 

26 2.5 Report from Public Works Superintendent Scott Edwards, 2022 First Quarter Report 

28 2.6 Report from Parks and Maintenance Manager Steve Robinson, 2022 First Quarter Report 

30 2.7 Report From Deputy Clerk Nicole Gourlay, 2022 First Quarter Report 

33 2.8 First Quarter YTD Budget 2022 From Linda Saunders Treasurer 

STAFF REPORTS, MOTIONS AND DISCUSSION

47 3.1 Report from Deputy Clerk Nicole Gourlay, 16 Magnet Road Access Agreement 

49 3.2 DRAFT Site Plan Agreement 2 Colbalt Lane - Huang 

58 3.3 Report from Spectrum Telecom Group Wayne Lynch, Ahmic Lake Area Broadband 

68 3.4 Correspondence from Trinity Church, Magnetawan Centennial Park Gazebo July 2022

69 3.5 Correspondence from Cecebe Waterways Association, Magnetawan Centennial Park July 

2022

71 3.6 DRAFT Motion Inclusion of the Town of Kearney and the Municipality of McMurrich 

Montieth in Local Catchement Area 

74 3.7 DRAFT Set Tax Ratios for Municipal Purposes and Levy the Rates of Taxation for the Year 

2022 

99 3.8 Correspondence from Greener Earth Engineering & Design Frank Pattillo, RFP 2022-03 

Roof Repair/Replacement - Magnetawan Municipal Office Building 

100 3.9 Pinchin Croft Annual Monitoring Report & Pinchin Chapman Annual Monitoring Report**

105 3.10 Use of Municipal Resources During an Election Period Policy & DRAFT Rescind By-law 

2018-22

108 3.11 Correspondence re: Whitestone and Area Nursing Station Building Expansion

110 3.12 DRAFT Adopt Policies with Respect to the Hiring of Employees 

138 3.13 Report from Deputy Clerk Laura Brandt, Replacement of Outdoor Pavilion Rink Boards

140 3.14 Correspondence Magnetawan Lions Club Swimming Lesson Insurance 



MUNICIPAL BOARDS AND COMMITTEE MINUTES

141 4.1 Central Almaguin Planning Board (CAPB) Minutes December 15, 2021, January 19, 2022 & 

February 2, 2022 

154 4.2 Almaguin Community Economic Development (ACED) Minutes March 21, 2022 

157 4.3 Magnetawan Community Development Committee (MCDC) Minutes March 22, 2022 

CORRESPONDENCE

162 5.1 Town of Georgina, Limitations Upon Purchase of Goods Orginating From Russia 

164 5.2 Minister of Canadian Heritage, Canadian Organizations With Ties to Russia will not 

Receive Grant Funding 

166 5.3 Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing, Status of Emergency Orders COVID-19

168 5.4 OPP MPB Financial Services Unit 2022 Court Security and Prisoner Transportation Grant 

Update

169 5.5 RFP 2022-05 Request for Proposal Winter Sand 

182 5.6 RED Program Intake #2 Grant Funding, Approval of Grant Submission 

185 5.7 Celebrate Canada 2022 Grant Funding, Approval of Grant Submission 

186 5.8 Young Canada Works in Heritage Organizations, Outcome and Follow up of Denial of 

Funding Application 

189 5.9 Hazmat Day 2022 Poster

190 5.10 Easter Closure Municipal Office and Landfills Poster

191 5.11 ICYMI Council Highlights, March 23, 2022 

ACCOUNTS

192 6.1 Accounts in the amount of $405,219.88

BY-LAWS

207 7.1 Site Plan Agreement 2 Colbalt Lane - Huang 

216 7.2 Set Tax Ratios for Municipal Purposes and Levy the Rates of Taxation for the Year 2022 

241 7.3 Rescind By-law 2018-22

CLOSED SESSION

In accordance with Section 239(2) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended,   

Council shall proceed into Closed Session in order to address matters pertaining to:
(c) acquisition or disposition of land 

(d) labour relations 

CONFIRMING BY-LAW AND ADJOURNMENT

242 8.1 Confirm the Proceedings of Council and Adjourn

** Full Pinchin reports are available on the Recycling and Landfill Page on our website at 

www.magnetawan.com under Annual Reports 



Page 3 of 242



Page 4 of 242



Page 5 of 242



Page 6 of 242



Page 7 of 242



Page 8 of 242



Page 9 of 242



Page 10 of 242



Page 11 of 242



Page 12 of 242



Page 13 of 242



Page 14 of 242



Page 15 of 242



Page 16 of 242



Page 17 of 242



Page 18 of 242



Page 19 of 242



Page 20 of 242



Page 21 of 242



Page 22 of 242



Page 23 of 242



Page 24 of 242



Page 25 of 242



Page 26 of 242



Page 27 of 242



Page 28 of 242



Page 29 of 242



Page 30 of 242



Page 31 of 242



Page 32 of 242



Page 33 of 242



Page 34 of 242



Page 35 of 242



Page 36 of 242



Page 37 of 242



Page 38 of 242



Page 39 of 242



Page 40 of 242



Page 41 of 242



Page 42 of 242



Page 43 of 242



Page 44 of 242



Page 45 of 242



Page 46 of 242



Page 47 of 242



Page 48 of 242



Page 49 of 242



Page 50 of 242



Page 51 of 242



Page 52 of 242



Page 53 of 242



Page 54 of 242



Page 55 of 242



Page 56 of 242



Page 57 of 242



Page 58 of 242



Page 59 of 242



Page 60 of 242



Page 61 of 242



Page 62 of 242



Page 63 of 242



Page 64 of 242



Page 65 of 242



Page 66 of 242



Page 67 of 242



Page 68 of 242



Page 69 of 242



Page 70 of 242



Page 71 of 242



Page 72 of 242



Page 73 of 242



Page 74 of 242



Page 75 of 242



Page 76 of 242



Page 77 of 242



Page 78 of 242



Page 79 of 242



Page 80 of 242



Page 81 of 242



Page 82 of 242



Page 83 of 242



Page 84 of 242



Page 85 of 242



Page 86 of 242



Page 87 of 242



Page 88 of 242



Page 89 of 242



Page 90 of 242



Page 91 of 242



Page 92 of 242



Page 93 of 242



Page 94 of 242



Page 95 of 242



Page 96 of 242



Page 97 of 242



Page 98 of 242



Page 99 of 242



Page 100 of 242



Page 101 of 242



Page 102 of 242



Page 103 of 242



Page 104 of 242



Page 105 of 242



Page 106 of 242



Page 107 of 242



Page 108 of 242



Page 109 of 242



Page 110 of 242



 

Schedule “A” By-law 2022- 
Employee Human Resources Policy 

Page 1 of 13 

 

 

SCOPE AND PURPOSE 
 
INTRODUCTION 
This policy has been compiled for the purpose of promoting consistency of Human Resource 
Administration throughout the Municipality of Magnetawan. Nothing contained in this policy relieves 
the Municipality of Magnetawan or its employees from complying with all applicable municipal by-
laws, provincial and federal statutes, and the regulations thereunder. All provisions of this policy are 
subject to the Employment Standards Act, 2000, as amended. Some areas of this policy may be open 
to interpretation. The decision of the CAO shall be final on any such interpretations. 
 
SCOPE 
The provisions of this Human Resources Policy applies to all employees working for the Municipality 
of Magnetawan, unless otherwise specifically noted.  Items not specifically or already covered in the 
Collective Agreement – Canadian Union of Public Employee Local 1813-11 will be governed by this 
Policy. 
 
The “Supervisor” is the role of management that is considered the Department Head.   Department 
Heads report to the CAO.  Council is the “Supervisor” of the CAO. 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT 
 

HIRING 
The Municipality practices a fair, effective, non-discriminatory process to attract and retain the best 
qualified employees to meet the staffing requirements of the Municipality. Candidates will be 
selected on the basis of the requirements of the job according to the job description with attention 
to the applicant’s educational, technical qualifications, experience and general aptitude for the 
position.  The Municipality reserves the right to hire, transfer or promote internally with the 
exception of unionized positions, which will be posted according to the Collective Agreement. 
 
All staffing positions are created by Council, either by Motion or By-law, or through Collective 
Bargaining. 
 
Council will be kept current of all vacancies, recruitment and successful candidates for all positions. 

 
  

Page 111 of 242



 

Page 2 of 13 

 

GENERAL HIRING PROCESS 
a) Part-time, Contract and Seasonal Positions: The Supervisor and CAO or designate are authorized 

to interview and hire the employee. 
 

b) Full-time Positions: The Supervisor will  short-list the applicants who will be interviewed by the 
Supervisor and the CAO or designate. The CAO will notify Council once the hiring process has 
been completed.  

c) Supervisor (Department Head) Positions: The CAO will short-list the applicants who will be 
interviewed by the CAO or a designate, and the Mayor or as designated by Council. The preferred 
candidate will be recommended to Council for final approval. 
 

d) CAO Position:  Council will determine the procedure for filling this vacancy and nothing in this 
policy restricts the use of an outside consultant. 

 
INTERVIEW PROCESS   
All candidates will be required to submit a resume.  All candidates are expected to complete an in-
person interview, which may or may not include a skills test.  Internal candidates may be exempted 
from the skills test if qualified.  Telephone interviews may be used to short list candidates.  References 
to be checked for external candidates.  
 
Job descriptions will be attached to Offers of Employment and must be signed by both the successful 
candidate and the Supervisor.  A clean Drivers Abstract as well as a clean Criminal Records check may 
be required, and may or may not include a Vulnerable Sector Screening.  
 
Employees will receive an Employee Package which includes all pertinent policies as well as the Union 
Contract if relevant.  Employee Packages include, but are not limited to and may change as needed:   

• Job Description.  

• CUPE and Local 1813-11 Agreement. 

• Magnetawan Health and Safety Program. 

• Employee Code of Conduct – Bylaw. 

• Hiring of Employees including Progressive Discipline.  

• Accessibility Policy and Plan – Bylaw.  

• Workplace Violence and Harassment Policy and Program – Bylaw. 

• COVID 19 Mandated Double Vaccination (if relevant). 

• COVID 19 Updated Information (if relevant). 
 
All employees must complete and pass the Ministry of Labour Worker Health and Awareness Program 
prior to beginning work.  The Supervisor will go through the Employee Package with the New 
Employee. New Employees will sign off agreeing that they have read through the enclosed 
documents, they have had an opportunity to have any questions answered, have asked any questions 
needed, understand the documents, and agree to abide by the documents contained within the 
Employee Package. 
  

Page 112 of 242



 

Page 3 of 13 

 

PROBATIONARY PERIOD 
Newly hired and appointed employees are subject to a probationary or evaluation period as outlined 
in their employment contract, or Collective Agreement for unionized employees.   
 
HIRING RELATIVES (NEPOTISM) 
a) A Related Person, for the purpose of this policy, is defined as a person’s spouse through marriage 

or common law, any parent, child, or sibling and includes the corresponding step relationships. 
 

b) A Related Person cannot work in a position in which an Employee directly supervises and/or is 
able to influence the working relationship of the Related Person or would otherwise create a 
perceived conflict of interest.  
 

c) This policy prohibits the hiring of a Related Person of any Council member while in office. 
 

d) Potential conflicts of interest are to be reported immediately to the CAO for determination, prior 
to a hiring decision being made, whose decision will be final and binding. 
 

e) Conformity with this policy requires that relationships be disclosed immediately prior to 
acceptance of employment with the Municipality and subsequent relationships are to be 
reported to the CAO.  Should any violation of this policy occur, the Supervisor and CAO, in 
consultation with the employees directly affected will review the circumstances of the reporting 
relationship and attempt to rectify the situation.   

 
f) Matters affecting Supervisors and/or the CAO will be brought to the attention of Council for a 

determination. 
 

CRIMINAL RECORD CHECKS 
Where deemed appropriate by the CAO, the provision of a clean Criminal Record Check is required 
prior to the final offer of employment being given to a prospective employee. A clean Vulnerable 
Sector Screening may also be required. 

 
DRIVERS LICENCE AND ABSTRACT 
Candidates who may be using a Municipal vehicle, or require a vehicle for work purposes,  as part of 
their specified duties are to provide a clean Driver’s Abstract prior to final offers of employment being 
extended. Employees are to report any changes to their Driver’s Abstract to their Supervisor and/or 
the CAO, and in the case of the CAO to Council.  After hire, the Municipality will obtain the Driver’s 
Abstract at least yearly and/or at any time with or without cause.  The loss of a Driver’s License, failure 
to disclose changes or provide an Abstract, and/or multiple or serious infractions will result in 
disciplinary action up to and including termination of any employee with just cause.   
 
All employees who have access to a Municipal Vehicle must sign a Municipal Vehicle Usage form. 
 
Employees are not allowed to use any Municipal Vehicle and/or Equipment and/or property for 
personal use without express written permission from their Supervisor and/or CAO, and in the case 
of the CAO from Council.  

Page 113 of 242



 

Page 4 of 13 

 

JOB DESCRIPTION 

a) An accurate Job Description will be maintained for all positions within the organization.   
 
b) All Job Descriptions will be evaluated for the administration of remuneration and benefits. 
 
c) All newly created positions, job descriptions and renumeration (in the case of non-unionized 

positions) will be approved by Council.   
 

d) Minor changes in duties and/or additions and/or deletions to the Job Description will be under 
the discretion of the CAO.   
 

e) A review for pay equity compliance will be performed by an external consultant if required. 
 

JOB EVALUATION  

a) The Municipality has established and will maintain a job evaluation system which will be applied 
in a manner that maintains equity. 

b) New positions will be evaluated and assessed immediately following their approval by Council. 

c) Periodically, the CAO will undertake a full and thorough review of all non-unionized positions 
across the organization to ensure that integrity of the pay grid system has been maintained and 
will provide a comprehensive report to Council.  Generally, an interval of no more than five (5) 
years will generally take place. 

 
d) The Management pay grid system will increase each year in line with the Union Collective 

Agreement. 
 

SALARY GRID & MOVEMENT THROUGH THE GRID MANAGEMENT 
The management salary grid is comprised of five (5) steps for each salary band. 

 
a) Existing Employees: Movement through the salary grid by an employee will be based on delivery 

of successful performance for the year prior as evaluated in the Performance Management 
Program.  Successful performance will enable an employee to progress through the salary range 
towards Job Rate.  Successful performance shall be defined through the performance tool. 
 

b) New Employees: New employees will be placed at an appropriate step within the salary grid based 
upon experience, skills, and market competitiveness. An assessment of each individual’s skills and 
abilities will be completed before the date of hire to ensure that the individual is placed at an 
appropriate step on the grid.    

Page 114 of 242



 

Page 5 of 13 

 

HOURS OF WORK AND BANKED TIME 
The Municipality of Magnetawan understands the importance of a work-life balance while serving it 
residents. 
 
HOURS OF WORK 
a) Office Hours are generally between 8:00 am and 5:00 pm if unionized administration staff has 

agreed to a 4-day work week.  If not, office hours will return to 9:00 am to 4:30 pm.    
 

b) The CAO/Clerk and Supervisors work between a 35 – 40-hour work week depending on their 
employment contract.   

 
c) Office Staff (including unionized) may occasionally work a condensed week and/or day, with the 

approval of the CAO. Approval will not be unreasonably withheld provided there is staffing in place 
to maintain service levels to the residents.  
 

d) Office Employees who wish to work a 4-day week, need to have approval from the CAO and 
Council.  Employees will be paid their ‘regular’ work week with the understanding that hours 
accrued, and hours used must reconcile to zero at the end of the year.  Excess banked hours will 
not be paid out and any negative banked, will be deducted from the necessary pays and/or will 
need to be covered by current vacation pay and/or future vacation pay.  It is the responsibility of 
the employee and their Supervisor to ensure that there is sufficient ability to cover negative 
banked with vacation pay. 

 
e) The Collective Agreement outlines the hours of work for all other unionized employees. 
 
BANKED HOURS/BANKED IN TIME OF LIEU 
The Municipality of Magnetawan recognizes that, from time to time, it is necessary for Supervisors 
or the CAO to work additional hours.  All overtime must be approved by the CAO and is banked as 
time in lieu.   
 
a) All employees shall use banked time in lieu by December 31st in each year. Unused banked time 

will be forfeited.  There is no paying out of banked time. 
 
b) Banked time in lieu must be used prior to vacation and is to be used at a time approved by the 

immediate Supervisor. 
 
c) Banked time in lieu will be calculated at straight time, unless it is for a night meeting of Council 

and/or Boards, then it will be calculated at time and a half. 
 
d) Salaried employees who are required to attend a weekend Townhall meeting will be entitled to a 

full day in lieu of the Saturday or Sunday. 
 
e) Banked time in lieu may be used for work-week compression. 
  

Page 115 of 242



 

Page 6 of 13 

 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
The Municipality of Magnetawan considers benefits an important component of total compensation. 
Full time employees will be entitled to benefits upon hire, as outlined in the Benefit Policy Booklet 
including OMERS.  Part time and/or contract may be entitled to OMERS depending on OMERS 
guidelines.  
 

REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES  
a) Employees must obtain all appropriate approvals before incurring expenses; if prior approval was 

not able to be obtained, then the CAO will investigate and decide on the reimbursement of 
expenses. 
 

b) All expenses must be submitted within 60 days or prior to year end. 
 
c) All claims must be submitted prior to termination or leave from the Municipality. 
 
TRAVEL 
Personal Vehicles 
a) Municipality of Magnetawan assumes no financial responsibility for personal vehicles. 

 
b) Employees who use their own vehicle for approved Municipal business, will be paid mileage at a 

rate as set by the Municipality. All mileage reimbursement requests must be able to be verified 
and shall include addresses and/or known place and actual mileage travelled.    

 
c) Renting of vehicles may be considered in place of mileage if it is proven to be more cost-effective. 
 
d) Reimbursement is provided for necessary and reasonable expenditures on parking, as well as tolls 

for bridges and highways when driving on Municipal business. 
 
e) There is no reimbursement for traffic or parking violations. 
 
ACCOMMODATIONS 
a) Overnight accommodation must receive prior approval by the CAO. 
 
b) Reimbursement will be made for single accommodation in a standard room.  
 
c) You may be reimbursed for reasonable gratuities for restaurant, hotel room services and taxis. 

Record of gratuities must be submitted with expense claims. Examples of reasonable gratuities 
include: 

• 15% on restaurant meals. 

• 10% on travel (Uber, Taxi, room cleaning). 
 
MEALS 
a) Meal expenses may occur when employees are on Municipal business and are away from the 

office area over a normal meal period or have prior approval for the expense. 
 

Page 116 of 242



 

Page 7 of 13 

 

b) Selection of meals must be reasonable. 
c) Alcohol will not be reimbursed as part of an expense. 
 
d) No reimbursement will be made for conferences or training sessions where the meals are 

provided. 
 

VACATION 
 
POLICY STATEMENT AND RATIONALE 
The Municipality recognizes the need for rest and recreation as an integral element in balancing work 
and lifestyle and as such will provide annual paid vacation to eligible employees in accordance with 
the Employment Standards Act, 2000 and the following:  
 
a) Vacation periods, calculation of pay, continuous service and pay distributions will be based on a 

calendar year from January - December.  Employees are entitled to vacation in their first year, 
prorated from their start date.  Upon termination, protected leave or retirement, a payout of 
vacation pay will be proportionate to the percentage of the year that has been completed less the 
amount of time already taken. If an employee has taken greater vacation than has been earned at 
the time of termination, a recovery of the costs owed will be deducted from the final pay(s). 
 

b) Unless otherwise negotiated in their contract or performance review, Full Time Management 
Employees will receive an annual vacation with pay, prorated from their anniversary date in the 
required year as follows:  

• One year but less than 3 years of service - 2 weeks or 4%. 

• Three years but less than 5 years of service 3 - weeks or 6%. 

• Five years but less than 10 years of service 4 - weeks or 8%. 

• Ten years but less than 15 years of service 5- weeks or 10%. 

• Fifteen years and over - 6 weeks or 12%. 
 
c) Full time employees’ vacation pay will be paid when vacation is taken. Temporary and/or part-

time employees’ vacation pay will be calculated and paid on each pay. 
 
d) A carry-over of vacation, (no more than 10 days), to the following year requires the approval of 

the CAO. 
 
e) A payout in the current year, (no more than 10 days), requires the approval of the CAO. 
 
f) Vacation not used in the current year, and is longer than 20 days, will be lost and not reimbursed.  

Employees may be obliged to take paid vacation, even if not requested, at the discretion of the 
Supervisor or CAO. 

 
g) If an employee is on long term disability and returns to work through participation of a modified 

work program but is unable to return to full hours, his/her vacation entitlement will be pro-rated 
based on their percentage of hours worked to full-time status. 

 

Page 117 of 242



 

Page 8 of 13 

 

h) All vacation requests must be submitted by employees on a Vacation Request Form to the 
Supervisor for approval.   

i) Any vacation requests for longer than a two-week consecutive period require the approval of the 
CAO and in the case of the CAO approval from Council. 

 
j) All vacation requests are to be made in a timely manner to allow time for review and scheduling 

considerations. Vacation requests, once approved, will be maintained as part of the payroll 
system. These records will be made available to an employee upon request. 

 
k) Approval of multiple requests for the same time period within one department will be made at 

the discretion of the Supervisor and/or CAO, and in the case of the CAO by Council. 
 
l) Employees should be aware that pre-booking of trips prior to obtaining Supervisor’s approval 

could result in the request being denied and the employee will be responsible for all associated 
costs and expenses. 

 
m) Part time, contract, and seasonal employees shall receive vacation pay in accordance with the 

Employment Standards Act, 2000 unless otherwise negotiated within the employee’s contract of 
employment. 

 

SICK/PERSONAL LEAVE (NON UNIONIZED) 
The Municipality recognizes that, from time to time, employees may require time off to deal with 
illness, injury, medical emergencies, inclement weather personal appointments and urgent matters 
for themselves or family members.    
 
a) Requests will not be unreasonably withheld; however, the CAO may request that the employee 

provide reason for the leave. 
 
b) Duration of emergency sick or personal leave may be less than one (1) day and will not exceed six 

(6) days or as negotiated in the Collective Agreement, in total, in anyone (1) calendar year. 
 
c) Employees have an obligation to minimize the impact of the absence to the employer. Each 

employee is therefore personally responsible for advising their Supervisor or designate prior to 
each occasion necessitating an absence from scheduled duty.   

 
d) Absence of one (1) day or more, without notification to their Supervisor, may result in forfeiture 

of pay, and/or disciplinary action up to and including termination with just cause.    
 
e) After three (3) consecutive days of being absent, the employee may be required to obtain a 

doctor’s certificate and supply a copy to their Supervisor.  The cost of obtaining medical 
documentation will be borne by the employee.  An employee may be required to obtain a doctor’s 
certificate for any absence less than three (3) consecutive days at the discretion of their 
Supervisor. 
 

f) If an employee exhausts their Sick/Personal Leave, they are required to use banked and/or 
vacation time. 

Page 118 of 242



 

Page 9 of 13 

 

 
g) There is no payout for any unused sick/personal leave. 
h) Sick/Personal leave cannot be used for the following: 

• Any absence where the employee fails to provide evidence satisfactory to the Municipality. 

• Any compensable absence resulting from an occupational injury/illness. 

• Illness, accident, or disability suffered during any period of leave granted under the Personal 
Leave of Absence Policy.  

• Vacation periods. 
 
i) In the event that a non-unionized employee is unable to submit their timesheet due to illness or 

vacation, the employee will be paid their regular working hours for the week and any discrepancies 
will be rectified in the next pay period. Supervisors of unionized employees are responsible for 
submitting timesheets for their staff in this instance. 

 
Seasonal and Part-Time Employees 
a) Sick/Emergency Leave for Seasonal and Part-Time Employees shall be in accordance with the 

Employment Standards Act or Collective Agreement if unionized.  
 

PAID HOLIDAYS 
The Municipality will provide paid holidays in accordance with statutory requirements, holiday, and 
religious observances. 
 
a) Employees are entitled to the following paid public holidays or as negotiated in the Collective 

Agreement: 
 

New Year’s Day Civic Holiday 
Family Day Labour Day 
Good Friday Thanksgiving Day 
Easter Monday Remembrance Day 
Victoria Day Christmas Day 
Canada Day  Boxing Day 
  

b) If any of the above holidays falls on a weekend, the preceding Friday or following Monday will be 
deemed to be the holiday as chosen by the Municipality.  

 
c) For employees working part-time, holiday pay will be calculated in accordance with the 

Employment Standards Act, 2000. 
 
d) If an employee is on leave without pay, the employee will not be paid for the holiday. No statutory 

holidays are accumulated when on leave without pay. 
 

COMPASSIONATE LEAVE  
The Municipality of Magnetawan will provide paid compassionate leave following the death of an 
immediate member of the family.  Upon request, additional days may be granted at the discretion of 
the Supervisor and/or CAO as vacation, sick time, lieu time, paid or unpaid time. 

Page 119 of 242



 

Page 10 of 13 

 

 
a) In the event of the death of an employee’s (step)parent, (step)child, spouse, or (step)sibling, the 

Municipality will grant five (5) working days compassionate leave with pay. 
b) In the event of the death of an employee’s grandparent(s), grandchildren, mother-in-law, father-

in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, niece or nephew, or a child’s spouse, the Municipality will 
grant three (3) working days compassionate leave with pay. 

 
c) In the event of a common-law relationship, which has existed for a period of at least one (1) year, 

the previously noted common-law relatives would be permitted for bereavement leave. 
 
d) The employee is responsible to contact their Supervisor to inform them of their need for 

compassionate leave, in advance of the leave period, if possible. 
 
e) Employees who have not completed three (3) months of continuous service may not necessarily 

be eligible for paid leave. 
 

DISCONNECTING FROM WORK  
The Municipality of Magnetawan appreciates the hard work of its employees and agrees that work 
should not be completed outside of their normal working hours.  The Municipality understands that 
employees: 

• Are not required to take work home with them to complete outside of regular working 
hours. 

• Are not expected nor required to respond to work-related communication outside their 
regular working hours, while on break, or during any paid or unpaid time off. 

• Should take and use all of their scheduled breaks and time off entitlements for non-work-
related activities. 

• Will not face repercussion or be penalized for not communicating or continuing to work 
outside of their regular working hours. 

The Municipality of Magnetawan may, on occasion, send general communication to employees when 
they are not working, but will do their best to ensure that they are not sending communication that 
requires an immediate response from employees.  
 
Employees are not expected to respond to any company communication when not at work, except 
for unforeseen circumstances, such as an emergency. 
 

DISCIPLINE 
The Municipality of Magnetawan will contemplate disciplinary action when behaviour results in poor 
or unacceptable performance. When violations of rules and practices occur and disciplinary action is 
contemplated, the Supervisor will review the facts with the CAO prior to administering any corrective 
action.  
 
The purpose of the establishment of a system of regulations and procedures governing disciplinary 
measures, is to encourage good employee/employer relations by providing a fair and consistent 
treatment of Staff throughout the Corporation and to assist Supervisors in dealing with unsatisfactory 
employee actions or behaviour.  Particular emphasis will be placed on the Supervisor’s 

Page 120 of 242



 

Page 11 of 13 

 

documentation and the employee’s record. The Municipality will satisfy itself that the expectations 
that were violated were measurably attainable and clearly communicated, the employee was fully 
aware of what constituted acceptable standards and that failure to meet these standards would 
result in corrective actions. 
 
In the application of discipline in the Municipality, the following factors should be considered in 
addition to the nature and severity of the offence: 
• The cost involved to the Municipality (direct and/or indirect costs). 
• The effect on the Corporations’ public or employee relations. 
• The time interval between offences. 

• The potential liability and/or risk to the Municipality and/or its reputation. 
• The length and quality of service record. 

• Culminating Incident(s): An incident that in itself would not normally result in a dismissal, but in 
combination with other issues or previous actions  may justify such action. 
 

Progressive Discipline System 
The Municipality of Magnetawan, will follow a progressive discipline system which is based on the 
principle that the severity of the penalty increases with each subsequent infraction.  However, the 
severity of the incident(s) will determine the method of discipline, including, but not limited to 
termination with or without cause. 
 
i. Verbal warning  
ii. Written warning 
iii. Suspension 
iv. Termination 
 
All warnings, both verbal and written, and related incidents with respect to any employee 
discipline/job related problems will be documented.  Documentation is placed in the employee’s file 
of reference and a copy is provided to the employee. 
 
Driver’s Licence 
When a Driver’s Licence is required to discharge a responsibility of a Job Description and/or job duties  
the Driver’s Licence of the employee in such classification is suspended or revoked, the employee 
may be immediately demoted or terminated with just cause, at the sole discretion of the 
Municipality. The demotion may be to a position he/she is qualified to perform, providing one is 
available. The employees’ vacated position may be posted and filled.   Failing the availability of a 
vacancy, the employee may be laid off. 
 
Other Examples of Unacceptable Conduct  
This list is not exhaustive, and discipline may be necessitated by items not listed.  

• Absence from duty without prior permission from the Supervisor. The employee should notify 
his/her Supervisor (prior to his/her shift start, if possible) of the reasons for his/her absence 
and the expected time or date of return, except in case of sickness or other cause beyond the 
control of the employee which prevents obtaining prior approval. 

• Leaving the working area at any time without permission from the Supervisor or designate. 

• Disregarding job duties by neglect of work or reading for pleasure during working hours. 

Page 121 of 242



 

Page 12 of 13 

 

• Excessive cell phone use. 

• Tardiness. 

• Failure to commence work at the beginning of the work period and/or leaving prior to the end 
of the work period. 

• Use or possession of another employee’s working equipment without the employee’s 
consent. 

• Willful failure to make required time or to produce reports. 

• Stopping work or making preparations to leave work without specific prior authorization 
before the lunch period, or for any official break in work, or before the specified quitting time 
(examples are washing up or changing clothes before the official quitting time). 

• Where the operations are continuous, an employee shall not leave his/her post at the end of 
his/her scheduled shift until he/she is relieved by his/her Supervisor or his/her relieving 
employee on the incoming shift. 

• Failure to report any personal injury or equipment damage immediately to one’s Supervisor. 

• Unsatisfactory work and/or failure to maintain required standards of performance. Neglect 
or carelessness in observance of official safety or departmental rules, or disregard of common 
safety practices. 

• Leaving the job during regular working hours without notice to, and permission from his/her 
Supervisor. 

• Use of, being under the influence of alcohol, marijuana,  or any illicit drug(s) drugs while on 
duty or while representing the Municipality  

• Being impaired by alcohol, marijuana, illicit drug(s), prescription and/or over the medication 
while on duty or while representing the Municipality 

• The use of abusive or threatening language towards subordinates, fellow employees, 
Supervisors, or members of the general public. 

• Failure to report an accident in which the employee was involved. 

• Refusing to give testimony when accidents are being investigated. 

• Unauthorized use of Municipal Property for private work or performing private work on 
Municipality time. 

• Threatening, intimidating, coercing, or interfering with employees or Supervisors at any time. 

• Failure to report for overtime work without good reason. 

• Any deliberate act which endangers the safety of ratepayers, members of the public or co-
workers. 

• Wanton or willful neglect in the performance of assigned duties or in the care, use or custody 
of any of the Municipality’s property. Abuse, or deliberate destruction in any manner of 
Municipal property, tools, equipment, or the property of employees. 

• Willful or negligent damage to the person or property of the ratepayers, co-workers, or the 
Municipality. 

• Altering another employee’s timecard, or unauthorized altering of own timecard. 

• Sleeping during working hours (except Firefighters). 

• Making false claims or misrepresentations in an attempt to obtain sickness or accident 
benefits or Worker’s Compensation. 

• Bookmaking, or gambling of a similar serious nature. 

• Stealing or similar conduct, including the damaging, concealing or destruction of any property 
of the Municipality or of other employees. 

Page 122 of 242



 

Page 13 of 13 

 

• The sale of narcotics. 

• Fighting or attempting to injure another employee. 

• Carrying or possession of firearms, explosives, or weapons on Municipal property at any time 
(unless authorized by nature of position). 

• Instigating or leading any illegal walkout, strike, sit down or stand in. 

• An employee guilty of dishonesty or any dishonest action. Some examples include: theft, 
pilfering, opening lockers assigned to other employees, opening lunch boxes, tool kits or other 
property of the Municipality or of other employees. 

• Breach of confidentiality. 

• Insubordination by the refusal to perform work assigned or to comply with written or verbal 
instructions of the Supervisor  which the employee may be reasonably expected to perform. 

• Using municipal property and/or vehicles and/or property for personal use without express 
written permission. 

• Not following Health and Safety Protocols. 
 

Page 123 of 242



Page 124 of 242



Page 125 of 242



Page 126 of 242



Page 127 of 242



Page 128 of 242



Page 129 of 242



Page 130 of 242



Page 131 of 242



Page 132 of 242



Page 133 of 242



Page 134 of 242



Page 135 of 242



Page 136 of 242



Page 137 of 242



Page 138 of 242



Page 139 of 242



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Laura Brandt 

Deputy Clerk 

Recreation and communication 

Municipality of Magnetawan 

 

Dear Laura, 

The Lions Club of Magnetawan would like to ask Council to pass a resolution to 

cover the additional cost of Liability Insurance for the upcoming swimming classes 

from July 18, 2022 to August 5, 2022. We recognize that that this type of activity 

requires additional funding and without council’s support we, as Lions, would not 

be able to continue to have these lessons. Thank you in advance for your 

cooperation in this matter and we look forward to hearing from you.  

Yours truly 

Cliff Cookman 

Coordinator Lions Swim Program. 

Page 140 of 242



Page 141 of 242



Page 142 of 242



Page 143 of 242



Page 144 of 242



Page 145 of 242



Page 146 of 242



Page 147 of 242



Page 148 of 242



Page 149 of 242



Page 150 of 242



Page 151 of 242



Page 152 of 242



Page 153 of 242



Page 154 of 242



Page 155 of 242



Page 156 of 242



Page 157 of 242



Page 158 of 242



Page 159 of 242



Page 160 of 242



Page 161 of 242



Page 162 of 242



Page 163 of 242



Page 164 of 242



Page 165 of 242



Page 166 of 242



Page 167 of 242



Page 168 of 242



Page 169 of 242



Page 170 of 242



Page 171 of 242



Page 172 of 242



Page 173 of 242



Page 174 of 242



Page 175 of 242



Page 176 of 242



Page 177 of 242



Page 178 of 242



Page 179 of 242



Page 180 of 242



Page 181 of 242



Page 182 of 242



Page 183 of 242



Page 184 of 242



Page 185 of 242



Page 186 of 242



Page 187 of 242



Page 188 of 242



Page 189 of 242



Page 190 of 242



Page 191 of 242



Page 192 of 242



Page 193 of 242



Page 194 of 242



Page 195 of 242



Page 196 of 242



Page 197 of 242



Page 198 of 242



Page 199 of 242



Page 200 of 242



Page 201 of 242



Page 202 of 242



Page 203 of 242



Page 204 of 242



Page 205 of 242



Page 206 of 242



Page 207 of 242



Page 208 of 242



Page 209 of 242



Page 210 of 242



Page 211 of 242



Page 212 of 242



Page 213 of 242



Page 214 of 242



Page 215 of 242



Page 216 of 242



Page 217 of 242



Page 218 of 242



Page 219 of 242



Page 220 of 242



Page 221 of 242



Page 222 of 242



Page 223 of 242



Page 224 of 242



Page 225 of 242



Page 226 of 242



Page 227 of 242



Page 228 of 242



Page 229 of 242



Page 230 of 242



Page 231 of 242



Page 232 of 242



Page 233 of 242



Page 234 of 242



Page 235 of 242



Page 236 of 242



Page 237 of 242



Page 238 of 242



Page 239 of 242



Page 240 of 242



Page 241 of 242



Page 242 of 242




